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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Easy Trip Planners Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Easy Trip Planners Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended {*the
Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its profit including other
comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethies’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial
statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 38 in the Standalone Financial Statements, which describes the possible effect of
uncertainties relating to COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s financial performance as assessed by the
management. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, These marters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone
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tinancial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial
statements.

| Key audit matters | How our audit addressed the key audit matter
_Revenue recognition from air passage (Refer Note 17 to the standalone financial statements) .
The Company derives its revenue mainly from | Qur audit procedures included, amongst others the
agency commission on sale of airline tickets. | following:
¢ We obtained an understanding of the systems,
Revenue from the sale of airline tickets is processes and controls implemented by the
recognized on a net commission basis and Company for recording revenue from air
revenue from incentives and fees s passage, evaluated the design and tested the
recognized on earned basis net of discounts operating effectiveness of key controls.
given to customers. Incentives from airlines | « O a sample basis, we have traced the travel
are recognized as revenue when the details for which income is recognised to the
performance obligations under the incentive statements provided by the aitlines to evaluate
schemes arc achieved/ expected to be the incidence of travel by the customers.
achieved during the year. e On a sample basis, tested the amount of
incentives accrued at the year end on the basis
We identified revenue recognition from air of percentages (as preseribed by various

ticketing relating to incentives as a key audit ‘ airlines) applied on travel/ flown data received
matter because revenue is one of the from airlines. The amount of accrued incentives

Comp.any s key perfc.)rmance indicators. Also, is also adjusted with the data affirmed by
there is an inherent risk that revenue could be aitlines, to the extent received.

recorded at incorrect amount since estimation | ¢ Agspced adequacy of disclosures in the
of incentives is dependent upon various inputs
such as incidence of travel by customers,
achievement of sale/ flown targets and
affirmation of relevant data, as provided by
the airlines. .

standalone financial statements.

Other Information

‘The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not EXpress
any form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularitics; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with S8As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
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cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a materia)
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matiers in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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(D) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2”
to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements — Refer Note 26 to the standalone financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

;?ér Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership Number: 94941
UDIN: 21094941 AAAABY8615
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
Re: Easy Trip Planners Limited (*The Company*)

i

ii.

iii.

vi.

Vil.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative details
and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under paragraph
3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company:,

(a) The Company has granted loans to a Company covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company's interest.

(b) The Company has granted loans to a Company covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013. The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated for the loans granted and the repayment/receipts are regular.

(¢) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue for more than ninety days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 186
of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans and advances given and investments made have been
complied with by the Company. The provisions of section 185 in respect of loans to directors including
entities in which they are interested is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the maintenance
of cost records under Section [48(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the
Company.

{a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, goods and service
tax, cess and other statutory dues have not been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities and
there have been serious delays in large number of cases in case of goods and service tax and slight delays
in case of Equalization levy, tax deducted at source, Provident fund and employees state insurance. The
provisions relating to duty of custom, sales-tax, value added tax and duty of excise are not applicable to
the Company.
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viii.

Xi.

XIi.

xiii.

Xiv.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty
of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

| Name of the | Nature of the | Amount** (T{s Period to which | Forum where the |

statute dues millions) the amount | dispute is pending

| relates | |
Income tax Act, | Income tax | 356.98 AY. 2012-13 to | Commissioner of
1961 demand AY.2017-18 Income-tax

! —— | | {Appeals)

** The Company has deposited Rs. 9.60 miilion under protest.

The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowing dues in respect of a financial institution
or bank or to government or dues to debenture holders during the vear.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised
any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence,
reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the company or ne fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration
has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

[n our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause
3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.
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Xv. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192
of Companies Act, 2013,

Xvi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboj & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
ke
oy L~

//__,/

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 094941
UDIN: 21094941 AAAABYS8615

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021
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Annexure 2 to the independent auditor’s report of even date on the standalone Ind AS financial statements
of Easy Trip Planners Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements of Easy
Trip Planners Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’'s internal financial controls with reference to these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Standalone Ind
AS financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements is a process
designed fo provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Standalone Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
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principies. A company's internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, o that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

]

L4

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 094941
UDIN: 21094941 AAAABYR8615

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021



Easy Trii:)i’lnnners Limited
Standalene Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ASSETS
I. Non-current nssets

(a) Property, plant and equipraent 3 75.58 77.58
(b) Intangible assets 4 1.45 1.26
(c) Investment properties 5 23.13 23.21
(d) Intangible assets under development 4 333 333
(e) Financial assets
{1) Loans 6 0.50 -
(ii) Invesiments 6 15,95 12.01
(iii) Other financial assets & 132,15 149.20
(f) Deferred tax asset (net) 16 32.87 30.59
(2) Other current assets 7 LI12 -
Total non-current assets 291.08 29718
Il Current assets
(2) Financial assets

{i) Loans 6 44.96 132.39

(1) Invesiments [1 10.15 9,99

(iii) Trade receivebles 8 293.91 583.68

(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 9 424.48 130.78

{v) Other bank balances L] i,858.32 1,177.85

(w1) Other financial assets 6 72.83 204.23

{b) Other current assets 7 $13.66 287.17
Total current nssets 3,518.31 252619
Total Assets (34+IT) 3,809.39 2,823.37
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1L EQUITY

(a) Equity share capital 10 217.29 217.29

(5) Other equity

{1) Retained earnings 11 1,436.53 809.87

1,653.82 1,027.16
LIABILITIES
V. Non-current Liabilities

{z) Financial liabilities

(i) Other financial labilittes 12 1,53 1.63

(b} Contzact liability 13 212.44 386.82

{¢) Long tetm provisiens 14 = t8.27 17.54
‘Fotal non-current linbilities 233.24 405.59
¥, Current liabiities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Trade payables 12

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smal) emerprises; .15

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smatl enterprises 237.87 248 46

{1} Other financial liabilities 12 1,076.35 718.37

(b) Contract liability 13 367.60 222.56

(c) Pravisionsg 14 4.99 2.94

(d) Other current lizbilities 15 109.50 83.12

(e) Liabilities for current tax {net) 16 125.57 114,77
Tatal current liabilities 1,922,33 1,390.22
Total Liabilities 2,155.587 L?%.. 1
Total Equity and Liabilities (IIHIV+V) 3,809.39 2,823.37

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per cur report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Divectors of
Chartered Accouniants
Easy Trip Planners Limited /

ICAT firm registration number; 101045W/E300004 CIN - L&3090D L2008 PLC173041

‘er Yogesh Midha \M ;. ikant Pittie

Partner
Membership No.: 94941

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021

Ashish Kumar HBansal

Director Director

DIN: 8272265
Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021 (_ -

DIN: 031363569
Place: Naw Delhi
Date: June 15, 20

iy

Preeti Sharma

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership Wo: 34417
Place: Mew Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: June 15, 2021

Date: June 15, 2021



Easy Trip Planners Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1 Revenue from operations 17 1,066.92 1,409.85
1t Other income 18 44225 387.39
111 Total income (I + II) 1,509.17 1,797.24
IV Expenses
Service cost - 37.54
Employee benefits expense 19 211.64 29954
Finance costs 20 31.71 30.98
Depreciation and amortization expense 21 6.62 7.07
Other expenses 22 412.98 946.96
Total expenses 662,95 1,322.09
v Profit before tax (I1I-1V) 846.22 475.15
VI Tax expense: 16
Current tax 225.76 132.52
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years 1.00 -
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (3.52) (3.85)
Total tax expense 223.24 128.67
YII  Profit for the year (Y-VI) 622.98 346.48
VIII Other Comprehensive Income
Iterns that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss in 23
subsequent years
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 4.92 1.80
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss (1.24) {0.45)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3.68 1.35
X Total comprehensive income of the year, net of tax (VII+VIII) 626.66 347.83
Earnings per share: (INR) [face value of INR 2 per share]
Basic and Diluted 24
Computed on the basis of total profit for the year 5.73 3.19
Sumumary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

1CAI firm regisiration number: 101049W/E300004

ptr Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.. 94941

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021

b

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Easy Trip Planners Limited
CIN - L630%DLAMSPLC179041

™y
. —
\
J‘}J'o >
//

Nisliant Pitti
Director

DIN: 02172265
Place; New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021

i

Aslish-lamir Bansal
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021

\
[

A

o/
¥ H;i(m{ Pittie
rector

DIN: 03136369
Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021

-

) AD
A L,Lb

e

Preeti Sharma
Company Secretary
Membership No: 34417
Place: New Delhi

Date: June 15, 2021



Easy Trip Planncrs Birdlie(]
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in INR miflion, unless stherwise stated)

Farticulars

A Cash flow from opernting activitios
1 Profit hefore tax
Profit before tax

2 Adjusiments lo reconcile profit befare tax 1o nct cash Aows:
Depreciation and amortization
Advance writicn off
Flhance cast
[nterest income [rom:
- On deposits with bank
« On loans and athers
Impairment allowance of irede receivables
Provision for doubtful advances
Bad debis
Dividend income
Fair vaiuc gain on financial instruments al fair valuc through profil or ose
Liability o Ionger required written back and Claims writien beck
Incomne from Minancial guaranise
Profii on salc of investmend properly

3  Opcrating profit before working capital changes (142)
4 Warking Capital adjustments:

Deercase / {Increase) in tradkc receivables
Decrease in financial assets

{Increase) in other current sssels

(Decreasc) / Increase in trade payables
Increase in other financia! liabilities

Increage / (Decreasce) in other current Labilities
{Decrease) in contract liabilitics

Incrense in provisions

Nei changes in working capital

5 Netcash flows from operaling activicies (3+4)

G Direct laxes paid (net of refunds)

7 Net cash flows from operaling activitics (5-6) {A)
B Cish Aow from investing activities:

Purchase of investments

Payment for Purchase of properiy. plant and
Preceeds from sale of Invesiment property
Acquisition of subsidiarics

Investments in baak deposits thaving original maturiiy o more than Uinee monchs)
Dividend roceived

Inlerost regeived

Net cash flow fronv/{used in) investing activities (B)

Intangible assets asd Inangibles under develop

€ Cash Moy Trom financing activitics:
Payment of principal pertien of lease lia
Payment of interest portion of kage liabilitics
Finance costs paid
Net cash flow fram/(used in} financing aciivities (C)

D Netincrcase/(hecrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+8+C)

E Cash & cash cquivalenls as at the beginning of the year
Cash & cash cquivalents as at the cnd of the year (D+E)

Cash and cash cquivaknts comprises:
Cazh on hand
Funds in transit
Balances with banks:
- Currenl account
Total cazh and cash cquivalents (Refer note 9)

*Bglance in current aceount includes INR 0.0+ {March 31. 2020: Nil) which is in raturc of resiricied cash.

Summarty of siynificant sccounting pol

For the year cmded For the year ended
March 3, 2021 March 31, 2020

84622 475,15

84522 47515

862 707

356 0.02

.59 28,78
@587 3334y

{13.31) {35,57)

8.00 2703

642 672

13.26 157

(©23) .13

(©.16) -

(2343) (243.78)

(LT3 (0.50;
e 117.69)
(367.29) (256.68)

= FerrT] = 2847
268.51 (208.02)

0247 159.61

(536463 [T

458 028

574.60 13391

2369 (13629

2234 (12000)

770 647

G065y 3738

108553 T sss:
(24150 (57.34)

#M3T3 17638

00 @99

8D (1487

: 7742

. (882

(668.32) (807.43)

023 013

12464 FTRT
(544929 1685.62)

- (177

- (0.54)

(074 (0.42)
1074 1273

) 2070 209.97)
130.7% 340,75

2448 130.78

962 078

83.83 10.67

10,03 11933

12448 130,78

The accompanying noies are an inlcgral part of the finoncial stalements
As per pur report af even date

For S.R. Batlibei & Associates LLF
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI firm registration number: 101 049W/E300004

N L2

per ¥ ngesh Midha
Partncr
Membership No.: 94941

Place: New Delhi
Date: Junc 15 202]

For anil an behalf of the Booard of Directory
Easy Trip Planners Limdted
CIN = LG309UDLAHINPLL | 7504t

o
Nishunt Pitii

Director irector

DIN: 02072265 DIN: 03136369
Place: New Drelhi ~ Place: New Delhi

Date: Junc 15, 2021 Dale: Junc |5, 202

¥
CAANPY
umar Bansal Pre®h) Shanma
Chiel Financinl Officer Campany Secretary
Membarghip Mot 34417
Place: New Dethi Place: New Delhi

Date: Junc 13, 2021 Daie: June 15. 2021



Easy Trip Planners Limited

Standalone Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

Allamounts in INR million {unless otherwise stated)
{a) Equity Share Capital

Particulars

Balance as at April 01, 2019

Add: Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2020

Add: Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021

(b} Other Equity

Balance as at April 01, 2019

Add: Frofit for the year

Add: Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at March 31, 2020

Balance as at April 01, 2020

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Other comprehensive income for the vear (Refer note 23)
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at March 31, 2021

Nature and purpose of reserves

Number of shares Amount

108.65 217.29
108.65 217.29
108.65 217.29

Retained earnings Total other Equity
462.04 462.04
346.48 34648
1.35 1.35
347.83 347.83
30947 809.87
809.87 809.87
622.98 622.98
3.68 3.68
626.66 626,66
1,436.53 1,436.53

Retained earnings represents cumulative profits of the Company. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No.: 94941

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 153, 2021

TN\ Date: June 15,2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Easy Trip Planners Limited
CIN - L63090DL200SPLC179041

Nishant Pitti
Director

DiN: 02172265
Place: New Delhi

NN
ok N
Ashish Kumar Bansal
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021

/

Py lyé t Pittie

Director

DIN: 03136369
Place: New Delhi
Date: June 15, 2021

Preeti Sharma
Company Secretary
Membership No: 34417
Place: New Delhi

Date: June 15, 2021



Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts are in milliens of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

1. Corporate Information

LEasy Trip Planners Limited (formerly known as "Easy Trip Planners Private Limited") (*the Company”) was a
private limited company domiciled in India and incorporated on June 04, 2008 under the provisions of the
erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 replaced with Companies Act, 2013 w.e.f April 01, 2014, The Company is
engaged in the business of providing reservation and booking services related to travel and tourism through ease
my trip-portal, ease my trip-app or in-house call-centre. The registered office of the Company is located at 223,
Patparganj Industrial Area, Delhi 110092, The Company has become a Public Limited Company w.e.f. April 12,
2019 and consequently the name of the Company has changed from Easy trip Planners Private Limited to Easy
trip Planners Limited.

The Company has completed its initial public offering (TPO) of 27,272,727 Equity Share of Face Value of INR
2 each for cash at a price of INR 187 per Equity Share aggregating to INR 5,100 million through 100% Offer for
Sale. Pursuant to IPO, the Equity Shares of the Company got listed on Bombay Stock Exchange ("BSE") and
National Stock Exchange ("NSE") on March 19, 2021.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The Standalone financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Indian
Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS”) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with rule 3
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and presentation requirements of
Division [1 of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule I1I}. The financial statements
comply with Ind AS notified by Ministry of Company Affairs (MCA).

These financial statements are authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of directors on June 15, 2021,

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied, by the
Company, to all the years presented in the said financial statements.

The preparation of the said financial stalements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies, The areas where estimates are significant to the financial statements, or areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, are disclosed in Note 2.21,

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in miltions of Indian Rupees and are rounded to
the nearest millions, except per share data and uniess stated otherwise.

2.2 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.




Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

®*  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

® Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
year.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

2.3 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal
opetating cycle, held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting year, or cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting year.

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily
for the purpose of trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting year, or there is no
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting year.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment (' PPE")

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. PPE is stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any,

The initial cost of PPE comprises purchase price {including non-refundable duties and taxes but excluding any
trade discounts and rebates), borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use,
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separaie assefs, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit
and Loss at the time of incurrence.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at
based on the useful lives estimated by the management which are in line with the useful lives prescribed in
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its PPE.

Particalars Years
Buildings 60
Furniture and fixtures 10
Motor vehicles 10
Computers 3
Office equipment 3
Vehicle- Others 8

Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and hence, is not depreciated.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, at-least
as at each reporting date so as to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected
pattern of economic benefits from these assets. The effects of any change in the estimated useful lives, residual
values and / or depreciation method are accounted prospectively, and accordingly the depreciation is calculated
over the PPE’s remaining revised useful life.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be
measured reliably, When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company recognises such components separately and depreciates them based on their specific useful lives. All
repair and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reposting year in which they are
incurred.

2.5 Intangible assets

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is probable that future
economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful econemic life. The Company
amortizes software over the best estimate of its useful life which is three years Website maintenance costs are
charged to expense as incurred.

The amortization peried and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected
useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed
prospectively. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the
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amortization method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such changes are accounted for in accordance with
Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

2.6 Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

An investment in land or buildings, which is held by the Company to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both, rather than intended to use by, or in the operations of, the Company, is classified as investment property.

The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost
of bringing the investment property to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates
are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Depreciation on building component of investment property is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period
of 60 years, which is in line with the useful life prescribed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on leasehold land component of investment property is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
period of lease of 90 years, which is in line with the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act,
2013.

Investment properties are derecognised cither when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the year of
derecognition,

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds ifs recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
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amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually, as appropriate, and when
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

2.8 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a petiod of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,
the Company assesses whether:

— the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should
be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplier has
a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

— the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout
the period of use; and

—  the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the decision-
making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases where
the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the right to direct
the use of the asset if either:

» the Company has the right to operate the asset; or

® the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

Where the Company is the lessee

The Company tecognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful
lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment.

In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-
measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: /,/--"'__‘““\
I./ (/1’_"‘\\‘ L

(&(oerr)5)
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— fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

—amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in
an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties
for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is
a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option,

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The Company’s lease liabilitics arc inciuded in Intetest-bearing loans and borrowings.

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.¢., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

‘The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant
and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘other non-current financial liabilities’ in the statement of financial position.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies Section 2,7 Impairment of
non-financial assets.

Where the Company is the lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease.

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the year in which they are earned.

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease is based on whether fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is
not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the
lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

2.9 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
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costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.10 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to the fair
value measured on initial recognition of financial asset. Purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at
seitlement date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash in banks and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Classification

The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition. Financial assets are
classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments), designated at fair value through
OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments) and fair value
through profit or loss,

Financial instruments at amortized cost
A financial instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b) Contractuat terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Alter nitial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in other income
in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. This category includes cash and bank balances, loans, unbilled revenue, trade and other receivables.

Financial instruments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVTOCI?)
A financial instrument is classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.
Financial instruments included within the OCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at

fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in OCL On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gam or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from OCI to statement of profit and loss. :
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Financial instruments at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (‘FVTPL*)

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, is classified at fuir value through profit and loss. Financial instruments
included in the fair value through profit and loss category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Financial guarantee contracts

A flinancial guarantee contract is a contract that requites the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values
and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

»  The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109;
and

® The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTQCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the QCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
P&L, even on sale of investment,

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the statement of profit & loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through profit and loss. Lifetime ECL allowance is recognized for trade receivables with no
significant financing component. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount
equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case, they are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required
to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company follows simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables, The
application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
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recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

ii) Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade
payables and other payables,

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured either at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method, or at fair value through profit or loss.

Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
The gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process. Amorlised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss, This category generally applies to borrowings.

2.11 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty.

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as agent in case of sale of airline tickets and hotel
packages as the supplier is primarily responsible for providing the underlying travel services and the Company
does not control the service provided by the supplier to the traveller.

Ind AS 115 was issued on March 28, 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company
has adopted the new standard on the transition date using the full retrospective method.

Income from services
A, Air passage

Income from the sale of airline tickets is recognized as an agent on a net commission, incentives and fees on earned
basis net of discounts given to customers, as the Company does not assume any performance obligation post the
confirmation of the issuance of an airline ticket to the customer. Company records allowance for cancellatlons at
the time of the transaction based on historical experience, Vo
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Incentives from airlines are considered as earned when the performance obligations under the incentive schemes
are achieved / expected to be achieved at the end of year.

The Company has measured the revenue in respect of its performance obligation of a contract at its standalone
sclling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence of its
standalone selling price.

The specific recognition criteria described below is also considered before revenue is recognised.
Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained untit it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved,

The Company recognizes incentives from airlines when incentives are expected to be achieved as per the threshold
specified in the contract. To estimate the variable consideration, the Company applies the expected value method
for contracts. The selected method that best predicts amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the
amount of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company uses historical data for forecasting future
cancellations to come up with expected cancellation percentages. These percentages are applied to determine the
expected value of the variable consideration.

B Hotels Packages

Income from hotel reservation is recognized as an agent on a net basis. Revenue is recognised at the time of issuance
of hotel voucher including for non-refundable transactions as the Company does not assume any performance
obligation post the confirmation of the issuance of hotel voucher to the customer.

Packages assembled by individual travellers through packaging functionalily on our websites generally inchudes a
merchant hotel component and some combinations of an air, car or destination services component. The individual
package components are accounted for as separate performance obligations and recognised in accordance with our
revenue recognition policies stated above. In few cases of corporate packages managed by the Company on an end
to end basis, the Company acts as a principal and takes full responsibility of delivering the services, the revenues
are recognised on a gross basis and cost of services against these packages is recognised as service costs.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer, If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade Receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in section (2.11) Financial instruments.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or setvices to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made, or the payment is due (whichever is eatlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract,
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The Company receives upfront advance from Global Distribution System (“GDS™) provider for facilitating the
booking of airline tickets on its software which is recognised as deferred revenue at the time of receipt. A pre-
agreed incentive is given to the Company by the GDS provider in periodic intervals for each eligible and confirmed
‘segment’ which is recognised as revenue and adjusted against amount recognised as deferred revenue. A Segment
means a booking for the travel of one passenger over one leg of a journey on a direct flight operated by a single
aircraft under a single flight number.

Non- cash Consideration

Ind AS 115 requires that the fair value of such non-cash consideration, received or expected to be received by the
customer, is included in the transaction price. The Company measures the non-cash consideration at fair value. If
Company cannot reasonably estimate the fair value of the non-cash consideration, the Company measures the
consideration indirectly by reference to the standalone selling price of the goods or services promised to the
customer in exchange for the consideration.

Income from other sources

Income from other sources, primarily comprising advertising revenue, income from sale of rail and bus tickets and
fees for facilitating website access to travel insurance companies are being recognized when performance
obligation being sale of ticket and sale of insurance in case of advertisement income is satisfied. Income from the
sale of rail and bus tickets is recognized as an agent on a net commission earned basis, as the Company does not
assume any performance obligation post the confirmation of the issuance of the ticket to the customer.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not
consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Claims written back

The Company recognise an expected breakage amount as income in proportion to the pattern of rights exercised
by the end-customer. Breakage amounts represents the amount of unexercised rights which are non refundable in
nature as per Company policies.

2.12 Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the functional and presentational currency of the
Company.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the relevant functional currency at the rates prevailing
at the date of the transaction, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency at the closing exchange rate prevailing as at the reporting date with the resulting foreign
exchange differences, on subsequent restatement / settlement, recognized in the statement of profit and loss within
other expenses / other income.

2.13 Employee benefits (Retirement & Other Employee benefits)

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the
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contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid.

The Company operates defined benefit plan for its employees, viz., gratuity. The costs of providing benefits under
the plan are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried out for
using the projected unit credit method. In accordance with the local laws and regulations, all the employees in India
are entitled for the Gratuity plan. The said plan requires a lump-sum payment to eligible employees (meeting the
required vesting service condition) at retirement or termination of employment, based on a pre-defined formula.
The cobligation towards the said benefits is recognised in the balance sheet, at the present value of the defined
benefit obligations less the fair value of plan assets (being the finded portion). The present value of the said
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using interest rates of government
bonds. The interest income / (expense) are calculated by applying the above-mentioned discount rate to the plan
assets and defined benefit obligations liability. The net interest income / (expense) on the net defined benefit
liability is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. However, the related re-measurements of the net defined
benefit liability are recognised directly in the other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise, The said
re-measurements comprise of actuarial gains and losses (arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions), the return on plan assets (excluding interest). Re-measurements are not re-classified to the
statement of profit and loss in any of the subsequent years.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated ieave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuatial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains / losses are immediately
taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the
unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

2.14 Income taxes

The income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the related income tax is also recognised accordingly.

a. Current tax

The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates, laws and regulations, which have been enacted or
substantively enacted as at the reporting date. The payment made in excess / (shortfall) of the Company’s income
tax obligation for the year are recognised in the balance sheet as current income tax assets / liabilities. Any interest,
refated to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are not included in Income tax charge or (credit), but are
rather recognised within finance costs.

Current income tax assets and liabilities arc off-set against each other and the resultant net amount is presented in
the balance sheet, if and only when, (a) the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off the current
income tax assets and liabilities, and (b) when it relates to income tax levied by the same taxation authority and
where there is an intention to settle the current income tax balances on net basis.

b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the financial statements.




Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in millions of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at cach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that arc expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

2.15 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution
is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in
India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders or board of directors in Board meeting
or Annual General Meeting as applicable. A cotresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-
measurement recognised directly in cquity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying
amount of the assets distributed is recopnised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.16 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,
share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares,

2.17 Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value if the effect of
time value of money is not material and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates,

Whete the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

2.18 Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible abligation or a present obligation
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in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in financial statements.

2,19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less (that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and cash equivalents and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value) and funds in transit. However, for the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
in addition to above items, any bank overdrafis / cash credits that are integral part of the Company’s cash
management, are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents,

2,20 Segment reporting policies

Identification of segments — Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating
segment for which the operating results are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource
allocation and performance measurement, For details, refer to note 30.

2.21 Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company
and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future
events), that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances, The said estimales are based
on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide additional
cvidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date. Although the Company regularly assesses these
estimates, actual results could differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such
estimates were reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions do
not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in the financial statements in the
year in which they become known.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next firancial year, are described below. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

a. AHlowance for uncollectible trade receivables and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and arc stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the
receivable balances and historical experience. Additionaily, a large number of minor receivables is grouped into
homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible are provided in note 8 and 34.

b. Defined benefit plans

The costs of post-retirement benefit obligation under the Gratuity plan are determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increase, mortality rates and future pension
increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. For details,
refer to note 25.
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¢. Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
present valuation technique. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and velatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. For details, refer to note 32 and 33.

d. Contingencies

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the management/independent experts.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

¢. Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilitics. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

f. Determining the [ease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any years covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not 1o exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
to renew or to terminate {e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to
the leased asset).

Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not terminated). Termination options in given in lease of office space to the lease, which
have been included in the lease liability as Company is not intended to terminate the lease. Reason for not to
exercise the termination option is because Company requires the office premise for future period, location of office
premise is prominent and lease rentals are reasonable. There is no future cash outflow in respect to extension and
termination option which is not included in the lease liability.

2,22 Recent pronouncements

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) through a notification, amended Schedule 111 of
the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division 1, II and 11 of Scheduie 11T and are applicable from
April 1, 2021. Key amendments relating to Division 11 which relate to companies whose financial statements are
required to comply with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 20135 are:

Balance Sheet:

¢ Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head 'financial liabilities', duly distinguished as
current or non-cutrent.

e  Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share
capital due to prior period crrors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting period.

»  Specitied format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters.

e  Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and
intangible asset under development. .
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¢ If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and
financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.

*  Specific disclosure under 'additional regulatory requirement' such as compliance with approved schemes
of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable property not
held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (IKKMP)
and reiated parties, details of benami property held cte.

Statement of profit and loss:
» Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and
crypto or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of
standalone financial statements,

The Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.
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Praperty, pleat and equig i
Particulars Frechold Land | Buildings Camputers g Fusniture and | ypi e Totas
cquipments fixtures
Cost
As at April 11,2019 5287 6,69 405 423 0.75 513 pZ%2)
Add: Additiens made during the vear - - 532 150 - 3.14 1016
Less: Disposals during the year - - - {0.03) {0.06) - - (0.09)
As at March 31, 2020 5287 669 9.57 570 069 | 9.27 84.79
Add: Additicns made during the year - - 306 0.79 385
Lsss: Disposals during the vear - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 5287 6.69 12,83 549 0.6% 9.27 88.64
Depreciation and Impairment
As at April 01, 2019 0.22 137 [15:]] 0.14 0.70 323
Add: Depreciation charge for the year ol 147 0%y 0.09 0.92 398
Less: On disposals during the year - - - - - -
As at Mareh 31, 2020 0.33 329 L7 0.23 1.62 7.21
Add: Depreciation charge for the year ®it 344 109 D 112 5.85
Less: Cn disposals during the yoar - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2021 - (L] 6.68 288 0.32 2.74 13.00
Net book value
As at March 31,2021 52,87 6.25 £.95 351 037 5.53 7558
As at March 31, 2020 52.87 6.36 6.33 | 3.9 046 7.65 77.58 |
Naotes:

(1) The Company has clected Tnd AS LO1 exemplion and continne with the carrying valuo for alt of its property. plant and equipment at its decmed cosl on the transition date, i.c. Apri 41, 2017,
(i) There is no capital work in progress as at end of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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4

0

Intangible assets

Computer Software Total
Gross block
As at April 01, 2019 0.64 0.64
Additions 1.41 1.41
Adjustment during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 2,08 2.05
Additions 0.87 0.87
Adjustment during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 2.92 2.92
Amortisation and Impairment
As at April 01, 2019 0.30 0.30
Charge for the year 0.49 0.49
Adjustment during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 0.79 0.79
Charge for the year 0.68 0.68
Adjustment during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 1.47 1.47
Net book value
As at March 31, 2021 1.45 1.45
As at March 31, 2020 1.26 1.26

Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets

under development Sotal
As at April 01, 2019 - -
Add: Additions during the year 3.33 3.33
Less: Capitalization during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 3.33 3.33
Add: Additions during the year - -
Less: Capitalization during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 3.33 3.33

The Company has elected Ind AS 101 exemption and continue with the carrying value for all of its intangible
assets at its deemed cost on the transition date, i.e. April 01, 2017.

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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5 Investment properties

Amount
As at April 01, 2019 85.40
Add: Additions made during the year -
Less: Disposals during the year (61.98)
As at March 31, 2020 23.42
Add: Additions made during the year -
Less: Disposals during the year -
As at March 31, 2021 23.42
Drepreciation and impairment
As at April 01, 2019 1.90
Add: Depreciation charge for the year 0.49
Less: On disposals during the year (2.18)
As at March 31, 2020 0.21
Add: Depreciation charge for the year 0.08
Less: On disposals during the year -
As at March 31, 2021 4.29
Net carrying value
As at March 31, 2021 23,13
As at March 31, 2020 23.21

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its investment property as recognised in its previous GAAP financial

statements as deemed cost on the transition date, i.e. April 01, 2017,

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment

. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

properties

Rental income derived from investment properties - 6.30
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising - -
from investment properties that did not generate rental income

Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and - 6.30
indirect expenses

Less - Depreciation 0.08 0.49
(Loss)/Profit arising from investment properties before indirect 0.08 58]
expenses .05 T
Fair Value of Investment properties

Number of investment properties 2 2
Fair value of investment properties outstanding as at that date 71.40 69.06

Investment properties consists of land and buildings situated in India for rental income and capital appreciation. The fair values of
Investment properties have been determined by independent valuer. The fair valuation is based on prevailing market prices/ price trend of the

property in that locality/ city considering the location, size of plot, appreach road, amenities, locality etc.

(This space has been intentionally lefi biank)
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(a)

U

(e}

Financial assets
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 202¢
Loans (unsecured, considered good)
Non-Current
Security deposits 0.50 -
0.54 -
Current
Security deposits 40.78 16.16
Loans to employees 2.06 1.78
Loans to related parties (Refer note 28 and 35) 212 -
Loans to other partics (Refer note 35) # - 114.51
Total 44.96 132.3¢
Tatal current 44,96 132.39
Total non- current 0.50 -
# It includes loan amounting to INR Nil (March 31, 2020: INR 1 14.51) to party which cease to be related after September 12, 2019,
Tnvestmentts at fair value through profic and loss (FVTPL)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current
Quoted mutual funds
755,510 (March 31, 2020: 755,510) units of INR 13.44 each filly paid 10.15 9.90
ap of IDFC cash fund-grovwth : )
Total FYTFL investments 10.15 4.99
Current 10,18 9.99
Non-current - -
Taotal 10,18 9.99
Aggregate book value of quoted investiments 18,15 9.9%
Agprepate market value of quated investments 1615 9.99
Agpropate amount of impairent in the value of investments - -
Investments in unguoted equity instruments vatued at cost
Non-current
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Subsidiaries
Easemytrip Middieeast DMCC: 60 shares (March 31, 2020; 60 shares} of AED 1000 each fully paid up 1.15 1.15
Singapore Awrivals Pte Liiited: 150,000 shares (March 31, 2020; 150,000 shares) of SGD 1 each Tully paid up 7.66 7.66
Easemytrip UK Lid: 100 shares (March 31, 2020: 100 shares) of GBP 1 each fully paid up* 7.14 3.20
15.95 12,01
Total Current - -
Total Non-current 1595 12.01

* The Company has furnished a financial guarantee on behalf of Easemytrip UK Limited for working capital demand loan and overdraft facility taken from ICIC]
Bank UK PLC. Such financial guarantee has been fair valued at the time of initial recognition and recorded as deemed investment in the subsidiary.

The Company is yet to file Annual Performance Report to Authorised Dealer in respeci of these subsidiaries for the financial year 2019-20.

(This space has beer intentionally lefl blank)
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All amounts in INR million (unless otherwise stated)

(d) Other financial assets

-

Non-current

Dieposits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months#

Current
[nterest acerued
- On fixed deposits

- On security deposits

- O loan

Receivable from related parties * (Refer note 28)
Receivable from others parties

Amount recoverabile from airlines

Advances recoverable against property

Total

Total current
Total now- current

Ag at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
137.15 149.20
137.15 149.20
26.54 42.58
0.96 0.51

0.12 -
- 79.45
- 1.22
45.20 1547
- 63.00
72.83 204.23
209,98 353.43
72.83 204.23
137,15 149.20

#Bank deposits as at March 31, 2021 inciude INR 22.50 (March 21, 2020: NIL) pledged with banks against bank guarantees, bank overdraft and credit card facility.

* Receivable fiom related parties includes amoumt receivable from "Selling shareholders” for expenses incurred during initial public offering (the offer’) through offer
for sale. All expenses with respect to the Offer is borne by the Selling Shareholders in proportion to the Equity Shares offered by each of them in the Offer, The total
[PO expenses incurred amounting ta INR 391.32 (inclusive of taxss) have been recovered from Selling shareholders in the current year pursuant to [PQ,

Oiher assets
Non-current
Capital Advance

Current
Prepaid expenses

Tax paid undsr protest
Advance to emplovees

Advance to suppliers
Credit impaired
Advance to suppliers

Less: Provision for doubtful advances [Refer Note 22)

Total

Total current
Total non- current

Set out below is the movement in the Provision for doubtfil advances of Advance to suppliers:

Balances at the begiming of the year
Provision for doubtful advance
Balances at the end of the year

fhis space has been intentionally lefi Mank)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
112 -
1.12 -
0.45 0.90
2.60 9.60
- Q.15
803.61 276.52
13.14 6.72
13.14) 16,72}
813.66 287.17
814.78 _287.17
813.66 287.17
112 -
As at As at

March 31, 2021

March 31, 202¢

6.72 -
6.42 6.72
13,14 6.72
- '-\\
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8
(a)

(b)

1
2

Trade receivables

Details of érade receivables is as follows:
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade receivables 29391 583.68
293.91 583.68

Trade receivables include unbilled receivables of INR 114.30 (March 31, 2020 : INR 342.62) and represents the gross amount of air ticket and
hotel packages and receivabe of other travel services to be collected from customers.

Break-up for seeurity deéails :

As at As at
N March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade Receivables
Caonsidered good - unsecured 293.91 583.68
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk* 73.53 65.53

367.44 649.21
Impairment allowance {allowance for bad and doubiful debis)
Trade receivables which have gignificant increase in credit risk (73.53) (65.53)
Total Trade receivables 293.91 583.68

* Including INR 2.23 (March 31, 2020: INR 2.23) recoverable from B2B agents against which the Company also filed a complaint in 2020
against ex-emplovess suspecting collusion.

Movement in expected credit loss allowance

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balances at the beginning of the year 65.53 38.50
Additions during the year 8.00 27.03
Balances at the end of the year 73.53 65.53
Notes:
For terms and conditions relating to related party teceivables, refer note 28,
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 30 days.
(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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9

U]

(i)

Cash and cash equivalents

Details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash on hand 0.62 0.78
Funds in trangit 83.83 10.67
Balances with banks:
Current account 340.03 119.33
Total 424.48 130.78

(a) Funds in transit represents the amount collected from customers through credit or debit cards / net banking which is outstanding as at
the year end and credited to the company's bank accounts subsequent to the year end.
(b) Balance in current account includes INR 0.04 (March 31, 2020: Nil) which is in nature of restricted cash.

Fer the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following;

. As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balances with banks:
Current account 340.03 119.33
Funds in transit 83.83 10.67
Cash on hand 0.62 0.7
Total o 424.48 130.78
Other baak balances
As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Deposits with remaining maturity of less than twelve months 1,858.32 1,177.95
1,858.32 1,177.95

Bank deposits as at March 31, 2021 in¢lude INR 770.86 (March 31, 2020: INR 592.32) pledged with banks against bank guarantees,
hank overdraft and credit card facility.

{This space has been infentionally left blanki
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10 Equity Share Capital

(a4} Detaits of shave cuyital is as follows:

As at As al
_ March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Equity ghare capital
Authoriscd share capital
125,000,000 {March 31, 2020: 125,000,000} cquity sharcs of INR 2/ cach. 25000 250.00
[ssucil, sohscribed and fully paid-up shase capitat
108,645,000 (Marck 31, 2020: 108.845.000) equily shates of INR 2/- cach 21729 217.29
217.2% 217.29
(b) Reconciliation of auth d, issued a0d subscribed sharc cuapital:
(f) Recongilistion of authorised share capital as at year end :
Equity shurcs .
Na. of shaves Ameunt
Ordinary Equity shares
As at April 01, 2019 (Equity shares of INR 2 cach) 115,00 250.00
[ncrease during tho vear - -
Ag at March 31, 2020 {Equity shares of INR 2 cach) 125.00 150,00
Inorease during tho vear
As at March 31, 2021 (Equity shares of INR 2 each) 125.00 . 250.00
(i) Reconciliation of issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital as at year end :
Equity shures
No. of shares Amount
Ordinary Equity share
As al April 01, 2019 (Equity shures of INR 2 cach) 108.65 217.29
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 {Equity shares of INR 2 each) 108.65 217.29
Increase during the yvear -
As ut March 31, 2021 {Equity shares of INR 2 each) — 108.65 217.29
() Terms/Rights atiached to ciuity shares
The Company has only onc class of equity sharcs having a par value of INR 2 per share (March 31, 2020 ; INR /- vach} . Each holder of equily sharc is entitled o onc volo per ghare. In the cvent of liquidation of
the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled lo recoive any of the remaining essets of the Company. after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity sharcs held by the sharcholders. The Company has not paid any dividerd during the vear ended March 31, 2021 and yoar ended March 31, 2020.
() Details of sharchetders holding mere than 5% shares in the compsny

Name of sharcholder
Equity shures of INR 2 cach fally paid

Nishant Pitti
Rikant Pitic

As al As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
No. of sharcs Yo ho_lcllng in the No. of shares % holding in the equity
cquity shares shares
40.48 37.26% 5412 49.81%
40.34 3703 5307 49.68%

The Company has eompleted its inilial public offormg (1PQ) of 27,272,727 no of Equity Share of face value of INR 2 cach for of ils cquily shares through Offer for Sale, which have boen listed on BSE Limited
("BSE"} and National Stock Exchange of [ndia Limited { "NSE™) with effect from March 19, 2021,

Ag per the records of the Company, including its register of sh

benoficial ownerships of sharcs.

©) Aggregate number of Shares allotted as fully paid by way of boaus shares {during 5 vears immedistely precceding Maceh 31, 2021):

ders/ ¢

s/ and other decl

received from sharchokders regarding bonelicial interest, the above sharcholding represents both legal and

Apggregate number
Particulars af shares issucd in 5 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 21, 2017
years . 1
Equily shares allotied as Tully paid bonus sharcs by
capitaisation of Securilics Promizm Acount 71190 - L7190
Eqult_\‘_!ha'rﬂ allotiod a3 fully paid bonns shares by 72430,000 72.430.000 ;
sitalization of accuniulated (irofits
(This space has heen Infentionatiy feff blant)
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i1 Other Equity

(a) Retained earnings Amount
As at April 01, 2019 462.04
Add: Profit for the year 34648
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax 1.35
As at March 31, 2020 809.87
Add: Profit for the year 622,98
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax 3.68
As at March 31, 2021 1,436.53

The disaggregation of changes in OCI by each type of reserves in equity is disclosed in note 23.

(This space has been intentionally left blank}
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12

(@

(i}
(ii)
(iii)

()

Trade payables

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60 day terms.

Refer note 28 for trade payables to related parties.

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.15 -
23787 248.46
238.02 248.46

The amount due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medivm Enterprises Development Act, 2006"
("MSMED") has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with Company. The disclosures
relating to the micro, small and medium enterprises are as follows:

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end

of each accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have

been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding the interest specified

under the MSMED Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Other financial liabilities

A. Non current
Finangial guarantes obligation
Total (A)

B. Current

Crther pavable

Salary payable

Payable to related parties (Refer note 28)
Financial guarantee obligation

Tatal {B)
Total (A-+8)

Total current
Total non- current

{hin spece fas been intentionally feft blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.15 -
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
2,53 1.63
253 163
1,028.53 702.39
10.40 14.92
35.04 -
2.38 1.06
1.076.35 718.37
1,078.88 720.00
1,076.35 718.37
2.53 1.63
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13 Contract liability

14

(a)

15

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Deferred revenue {refer note 17{c)) 344.55 425.28
Advance from customers (refer note 17(c)) 23549 184.10
Total 580.04 609.38
Total current 367.60 222.56
Total non- current 212,44 386.82
Provisions
Details of provisions are as follows:
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A. Non- current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity 18.27 17.54
Total (&) 18.27 17.54
B. Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity 0.36 0.23
Provision for compensated absences 4.63 2.71
Total (B) 4.99 294
Total {A+B) 23.26 20.48
Total current 4.9¢ 294
Total non- current 18.27 17.54
Other current liabilities
As at As at
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provident fund payable 1.27 1.47
Tax deduction at source payable 39.59 1.80
Goods and service tax payable 68.78 75.66
Others 0.16 0.19
Total 105.80 83.12

{This space has been intentionally left blanl)
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16

(i}

(it}

i}

(a)

Income tax
The major components of income tax expense are:

Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss comprises:
Tax Expense:

Current income tax

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reporied in the statement of profit or loss

Other comprehensive income (OCI) section

Deferved tax relating to items in OCI in the year:
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate(s)

Profit hefore tax

Af India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (March 31, 2020: 25.17%)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes

Effect of change in tax rate

OCrthers

Income tax expense

Inceme tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Linbilities for current tax {net)

Tax liabilities

Current tax labilities (net)

(Thix space has been intentionalty lefi blank)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
225.76 132.52
1.00 -
(3.52) {3.85)
223.24 128.67
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(1.24) (0.45)
(1.24) 10.45)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
846.22 475.15
212,98 119.59
7.93 215
- 7.21
233 (0.28)
223.24 128.67
223.24 128.67
223.24 128,67
As at Agat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
125.57 114.77
125.57 114,77
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Deferred tax assef (net): Balance Sheet
As at Asal
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Accelerated depreciation and amortisation for tax purposes 0.31 0.30

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year and earlier years but

X .1
allowable for tax purpeses on payment basis 14.05 12
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables 18.51 18.18
Net deferred tax asset (net) 32.87 30.59

Statement of profit and loss
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Accelerated depreciation and amortisation for tax purposes (0.01) 045
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year and earlier years but
. (3.18) 2.67
allowable for tax purposes on payment basis
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables . 10.33) (6.97)
Deferred tax expensef{income) (3.52) (385

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset {net):

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balance of deferred tax assel (net) 30.59 27.19
Tax income/{expenss) during the year recognised in profit or loss 3.52 385
Tax income/{expense) during the year recognised in OCI (1.24) (0.45)
Closing balance of deferred tax asset (net) 32.87 30.5%

Notes:

1 The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable night to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. In addition, the Company has an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realise the deferred tax assets and settle the deferred tax Habilities simultaneously.

2 In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable, that some portion, or all, of the deferred tax assets will not be
realised. The ultimate realisation of deferred fax asscts is dependent upon the g tion of future laxable income during the periods in which the temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the
level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable incomes over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management
believes that it is probable that the Company will be able to realise the benefits of those deductible differences in future.

3 The Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income - tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws
(Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 dated Septentber 20, 2019. Accordingly, during the year ended March 31,2021, the Company has recognised the provision for
income tax and remeasured its deferred tax assets basis the rate prescribed thereby and the related impact is recognised. The impact of change in tax rate on
deferred tax assets is disclosed above.

{This space has been imtentionatly lefl Mank}
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17 Revenue from operations

(a)

(b)

(<)

0]

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Type of goads or service
Rendering of services

Air Passage 967.51 1,133.67

Hotel Packages 4.49 101.70

Other services 8.89 7.51
Total revenue from contracts with customers (A) 980.89 1,242 88

Given that Company's products and services are available on a technology platform to customers globally, consequently,
the necessary information to track accurate geographical location of customers is not available.

Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time 980.89 1,242.88
Services transferred over time - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 980.89 1,242 .88

Set out below, is the reconcitiation of the revenue from aperations with the amounts disclosed in the segment
information:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue
External customers 980.89 1,242.88
Inter-segment - -
980.89 1,242 88
Inter-segment adjustments and eliminations - -
Total revenue from contract with customers 980.89 1,242.88
Contract halances
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade receivables 293.91 583.68
Contract liabilities 580.04 609.38

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are gencrally on terms of 0 to 30 days. In March 31, 2021, INR 8 (March
31, 2020: INR 27.03 ) was recognised as Impairment allowance of trade receivables.

Contract liabilities consists of deferred revenue of INR 344.55 (March 31, 2020: INR 425.28) which is advance received
towards productivity incentive which will be recognised as revenue on the basis of active and confirmed segment
boaokings.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(iii) Contract liabilities also consists of advance from customers of INR 235.49 (March 31, 2020; INR 184.10) which refers to

(d)

(e}

U

advance received from B2B customers (travel agents) and corporate customers for issue of tickets and hotel packages.
The Company acts as an agent in such cases, hence, only a part of this advance i.e. Commission income from such
advance will be transferred to revenue. There are no significant movements in these balances throughout the years
presented.

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue as per contracted price 1,576.60 2,483.73
Adjustments
Lcss:. Discounts offered to customers on airline ticket 595.71 1.240.85
booking
Revenue from contracts with customers 980.89 1,242 88

Performance obligations
Information about the Company's performance obligations are summarised below:

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations {unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are as
follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Within one vear 367.60 222.56
More than one year 212.44 386.82
' 580.04 609.38

The performance obligations expected to be recognised in more than one year relate to Global Distribution System
(“GDS™} provider for facilitating the booking of airline tickets on its software that is to be satisfied beyond one year. All
the other remaining performance obligations are expected to be recognised within one year.

Other operating revenue

For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Advertisement revenue® 86.03 166.97
Total other operating revenue (B) 86.03 166.97
Total revenue from operations (A + B) 1,066.92 1,409.85

* Advertising revenue majorly comprises of fees for facilitating website access to a travel insurance company and co-
funding arrangements with a banking company wherein a part of discount is borne by the banking company.

(This space has been inientionally lefi blank)
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18 Other income

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Interest income:
On deposits with bank 95.87 53.34
On loans 12.85 35.57
On others 0.45 -
Dividend income 0.23 0.13
Rental income 0.00 7.46
Liabilities no longer required written back 5.50 36,92
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 0.16 -
Profit on sale of mvestment property - 17.69
Bad debts and advances written off recovered 4.69 28.92
Claims wrilten back 31793 206.86
Income from financial guarantee 1.73 .50
Miscellaneous Income 2.84 -
Total 442.25 387.39

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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19 Employee benefits expense

20

21

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to PF and other funds (Refer note 25)

Gratuity expenses (Refer note 25)
Staff welfare expenses
Total

Finance costs

Interest om:
Overdrafis
Others

Bank charges

Totat

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of investment property
Depreciation on right-of-use

Total

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
200.42 280.45
495 9.1%
5.78 6.82
0.49 3.08
211.64 299.54
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.74 0.42
28.84 28.37
2.13 2.19
317 30.98
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
5.86 398
0.68 049
0.08 047
- 213
6.62 7.07
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22

(a)

{b)

Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Power and fuel 2.78 590
Rent 1.10 1.73
Rates and taxes 2.9% 2275
Insurance 1.03 1.91
Repair and maintenance
- Plant and machinery 1.50 275
- Building L29 4.80
- Others 16.99 2246
Advertising and sales promotion 147.84 269.94
Commission 2.06 80.29
Travelling expenses 0.42 15.62
Communication costs 3.39 707
Printing and stationery 0.79 1.59
Impairment allowance of trade receivables 3.00 27.03
Legal and professional expenses 10.6% 18.07
Payment to auditors [ Refer note (a) below] 354 293
Advance written off 3.56 9.02
Provision for doubtful advances 6.42 6.72
Qutsourcing expense 4.08 -
Provision for Contingency 1.50 -
Loss on ticket booking - 0.46
Bad debts 13.26 15.71
Credit card charges 257 73.54
CSR expenditure [Refer note (b) below] 547 597
Payment gateway charges 147.65 349.28
Miscellaneous expenses 0.92 1.06
412.98 946.96
Details of payment made to auditors are as follows:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2621 March 31, 2020
As auditors:
Audit fee* 3.50 2.50
Orthers Services 0.04 0.07
In other capacity
Reimbursement of expenses - 0.36
3.54 2.93
*This amount does not include fees paid to auditors in relation to the offer which is recovered from selling sharcholders.
Details of CSR expenditure: For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(a} Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 547 4.47
(b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 5.47 4.47
Particulars Paid in cash Yet to be paid Total
Amount spent during the vear ended on March 31, 2021:
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
i) On purposes other than (i) above 2.50 0.44 9.94
Amount spent during the year ended on March 31, 2020
1) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
ii) On purposes other than (i) above 1.50 4.47 597
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23

24

(2)

(b

{©)

Components of Other Comprehensive Income

The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:
Retgined earnings

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Re-measurement gains/ (Iosses) on defined benefit plans 4.92 1.80
Income tax effect {1.24} (0.45)
3.68 1.35

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic aund diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the vear attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

The following reflects the profit and share capital data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 108.65 108.65
Equity shares issued during the year - -
We:ghtcd average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (in 108.65 108.65
million)
Taotal operations for the year
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company 622.98 346.48
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of dituted EPS (no. 108.65 108.65
in millions)
Earnings per share [Nominal value INR 2 per share] 5.73 319

Weighted average number of shares is the mumber of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the vear adjusted by the number of
equity shares issued during vear, multiplied by the time weighting factor. The time weighting factor is the number of days for which
the specific shares are outstanding as a proportion of total number of days during the year.

(This space has bezn intentionally left blank)
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25 Employee Benefits

A.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and supperannuation fund which are defined contribution plans for qualifying employzes. The
contributions are made to the registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount
contributed and it has no further contractual nor any censtructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is
INR 4.95 (March 31, 2020: INR 9.19). The plan is funded.

Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity:

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Act, employees who have compieted five years of service are entitled to
specific benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age, The emplayee is entitled ta a benefit
equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months subject to maximum limit of INR 2
million. The same is payable on tennination of service or retirement or death whichever is earlier.

The present value of the abligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the
projected unit credit method, which recogrises each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each
unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used
for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Govemment bonds as at the date of
actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses (net of tax) are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCT}).

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profits or losses and amounts recognised in the
balance sheet for the respeciive plans:

Movement in obligation

Fot the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2026

Present value of obligation at beginning of the year 17.77 12.75
Interest cost 1.21 1.14
Current service ¢ost 4.57 5.86
Actuarial loss on obligation

- Economic assumptions 013 2.68
- Demographic assumptions - .01
- Experience adjustment (5.05) (4.49)
Bemefits paid - 10.18)
Present value of obligation at the closing of the year 18.63 17.77

Balance Sheet

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Present value of defined benefit obligation 18.63 17.77
Fair value of pian assets - .
Present value of defined benefit obligation (net)} 18.63 17.77
Expenses recognised in Statement of profit and loss
Faor the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current service cost 4.57 5.68
Past service cost - -
Interest cost on benefit obligation 1.21 1.14
Net benefit expense 5.78 6.82
(Thix spuce hus been intentionally left blunk)
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Expenses recognised in Statement of other comprehensive income

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Actuarial {gains) / losses
- change in financial assumptions 0.13 2.68
- change in demographic assumptions - 0.01
- experience variance {i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) (5.05) 14,49}
(4.92) 11.80)

The principal actuarizl assumptions used for estimating the Company's defined benefit obligations are set out below:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Discount rate 6.76% 6.08%
Future salary increase 100% 10.00%
Average expected future working life (years) 28.16 2822
Expected rate of return on pfan asset Not applicable Not applicable
Retirement age {years) 58.00 58.00
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability* 100% of IALM (2012-14)  100% OFIQI;M (2012
Withdrawal rate (per annum)

- Up to 30 years 5.00% 5.00%

- From 31 years to 44 years 3.00% 3.00%

- From 44 years to 58 years 2,00% 2.00%

*Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate represents published mortality table used for mortality assumption.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Impact of the change in discount rate

a) Impact due to increase of 0,50 % (1.61) (1.58)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 1.81 1.77
Impact of the change in salary increase

a) Impact due te increase of 0.50 % 1.41 1.39
b) Impact due to decrease of (.50 % (1.37) (1.38)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporiing year. These analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption,
keeping all other assumptions constant and may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

The follewing payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit obtigation in future vears:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Year | 0.36 0.23
Year 2 0.47 0.52
Year 3 0.64 0,47
Year 4 0.53 0.58
Year 5 0.53 0.51
Year 6 onwards 16.10 15.46
Total expected payments 18.63 17.77

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting vear is 17.66 years (March 31, 2020: 17.76 years).

(This spuce hus beer infersionally lefi blank)
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26 Commitments and contingencies

{A) Contingent liabilities

(a)

L]

(d)

()

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

- Litigation & claims (Refer Note (a) below) 667.68 667.68
- Service tax demand (Refer Note (b) below) 93.22 9318
- Guarantees (Refer Note (c) below) 340.77 210,00
- Income tax demand (Refer Note (d) below) 356.98 356.98
Total 1,458.65 1.327.84

The Company has ongoing legal cases against the Company on account of various matters includi ng recovery of moneys advanced in the course
of business, infringement of trademarks and seeking damages thereof. The cumulative amounts claimed against the Company in these cases is
INR 667.68; details of which are mentioned below:

(i) Air Worth Travel & Tours Privats Limited; one of the ticketing parer with the Company, has filed claim of INR 574 62 against the
Company on grounds of claiming wrongful refunds on flown tickets, failed to make payment of cancellation charges, lower ticket charges for
higher class tickets, excess refunds claimed. This case against the Company is pending for acceptance by the Honourable High Court of Delhi.
Further, the Company had also filed a case against Air Werth amounting to INR 92.50 in 2015 on account of advances given to them for
ticketing business and is pending for hearings.

(ii) Paytm, the e-commerce platform provider; managed by One97 Communications Limited has filed a case against the Company for non-
payment of cancellation refunds of TINR 53.06 for the period till May 2017 which have been paid by Payim to its customers on behalf of EMT,
nan-payment of performance linked bonus, ete, The matter is pending in Arbitration Proceedings.

{iif) MakeMyTrip has filed a claim of INR 40 for Permanent Injunction Restraining Infringement of Trademarks, Copyrights, Passing Off,
Dilution of Goodwill, Unfair Competition, Rendition of Accounts of Profits/Damages, Delivery Up etc for use of similar name. The matier is
pending before the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi.

The Company based on assessment of its legal counsel believes that any chances of liability devolving upon the Company upon final conclusion
of the cases mentioned above in Court of Law, is not probable and hence has not provided for ary amnounts in the financial statements towards
any adverse outcome of these cases,

The Cotpany had an gutstanding service tax demand of INR 30.62 for the financial years 2012-13 to 2016-17 pertaining to incorrect availment
of Cenvat credit on input services in cases where it has taken abatement and exemptions for provision of output services. The Company in
March 2019 has paid INR 15.31 under section 127 of Finance (No. 2) Act, 2019 read with rule 9 of the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Scheme, 2019)
as full and fina! settlement against such demand. As per the scheme, such payments would not be construed as admission of liability for any
subsequent years if assessed under the GST regime. Further, the Company based on internal assessment and expert opinion believes chances of
any liability develving on this matter is not probable and hence have not provided for any amounts in the financial statements which if
computed for years subsequent to FY 2016-17 shall be INR 93.22 (March 31, 2020; INR 93.18).

(i} INR 120 (March 31, 2020: INR 120): 'The Company has given joini bank guaraniees to Travel Agents Federation of India (*TAFT) in
respect of air travel business.

(ii) INR 20 (March 31, 2020: INR 20): ‘The Company has given bank guarantees to Intemational Air Transport Association(*|ATA”) in respect
of air travel business.

(i) INR 70 (March 31, 2020 INR 70): The Company has issued a SBLC (Standby letter of credit) to ICICI bank towards issuance of working
capital loan to its wholly owned subsidiary Easymytrip UK Limited against fixed deposits. The bank can inveke the SBLC in full in case of
default of repayments of loan and/for interest by Easemytrip UK Limited.

(iv} INR 105.27 (March 31, 2020: Nil): The Company has issued a SBLC (Standby letter of credit) to ICICI bank towards issuance of overdraft
facility to its wholly owned subsidiary Easymytrip UK Limited against fixed deposits. The bank can invake the SBLC in full in case of default
of repayments of loan and/or interest by Easemytrip UK Limited,

(v) INR 255 (March 31, 2020: INR Nil): The Company has given Bank guarantee to National Stock Exchange of India Lid. {NSE}in
accordance with the conditions precedent for NSE to function as the 'Designated stock exchange' for the Initial public offer of the Company,

A scarch under section 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 was carried out at the premises of the Company by the Income Tax authorities during
the financial year 2017-18. On March 27th, 2019, the Company has received demand orders amounting to INR 356.98 for financial vears 201 1-
12 t0 2016-17 pertaining to disallowances of certain expenses and addition of sales, The Company is contesting these demands at the Appellate
level and basis its internal assessment and expert opinion it belicves that the likelihood of these demands being sustained is not probable and
hence has not accrued any amounts towards these demands in the financia! statements.

There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on PF dated 28th February, 2019. As a matter of
caution, the Company has made a provision on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The Company will update its provision, on
receiving further clarity on the subject.

(This space has been intentionally left blonk)




Ezsy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to Standalene financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

(B) Capital commitment

{(a) At March 31, 2021, the Company had commitments of INR €.56 (March 31, 2020; INR 0.56) relating to software implementation contract
remaining to be executed and not provided for.

27 Leases
Company as a lessee
The Company has lease contract for office premise having lease terms of 3 years. The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the
lessor’s title fo the leased assets. The Company has also lease contracts for office premise having terms of 12 months or less. The Company

applies the ‘short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Amount
As at April 01, 2019 -
Additions ' 6.64
Depreciation expense {2.13)
Adjusted during the year (4.51)
As at March 31, 2020
Additions -
Depreciation expense -
As at March 31, 2021 -
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Amount
As at April 01, 2019 -
Additions 6.55
Accretion of interest 0.54
Payments (2.30)
Adjusted during the year (4.78)
As at March 31, 2020 -
Additions -
Accretion of interest -
Payments -

As at March 31, 2021 -
The effective interest rate for Jease liabilities is 10%, with maturity between 2020-2022

During the financial year 2019-20, the Company has vacated its office on which Right of Use {"ROU") and the lease fiability has been created
as per Ind AS 116, Accordingly, the carrying value of ROU and corresponding lease liability of TNR 4.51 and INR 4.78 respectively and the
difference INR 0.27 has been recorded as other income.

Maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as follows:

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Within one vear - -
Adfter | vear but not more than five year - -
More than five year - -
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss;

For the year ended For the year ended

March 3§, 2021 March 31, 2020
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets - 213
Interest expense on lease liabilitics - 0.54
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 1.10 i.73
Total amount recognised in profit or loss L.10 4.4¢

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of INR 1.10 (March 31, 2020: INR 4.04).

Company as a lessor
The Company has entered into operating Iease on its investment property portfolio consisting manufacturing buildings (see Nate 53, This lease
have term of five year. Rental income recognised by the Company during the year is Nil {March 31, 2020: INR 7.46).
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28 Related Party Disclogures
(a} Names of related parties ad related party relationship

{i} Enterprises owned ar significantly 1. Near Group Services Private Limited
influenced by key managerial personnel or 2. Sroby Private Limzted
3. Easemyirip Middle East DMCC
4 Singapore Arrival Pte Lid
5. Easemnytrip UK Limited
6. Thai Arvivals (till April 30, 2019)
7. Easy Productions Pvt Ltd (1ill September 12, 2019)

(i5) Key managerial personnet (KMP) i, Prashant Pitti (Whole Time Director)
2. Nishant Pitti (Chief Rxecutive Offizer and Whole Time Directar)
3. Rikaat Pittie (Whele Time Director)
4. Maxy Francis Assis Fernandes (Independent Director) (w.c.f July 02, 2019 to February 18, 2030)
5. Satya Prakash (Independent Director) (w.e.fluly 2, 2019)
6. Usha Mehra (Independent Director) (w.e.f July 2, 2019}
7. ¥ined Kumar Tripatht (Independent Drirecior) (w.ef February 24, 2020)
8. Abani Kant Jha (Chief Financial Officer) {w.e.f May 10, 2019 to August 31, 2020}
9. Preeti Shanna (Company Secretary) (w.e.f April 2, 201%)
10. Ashish Kumar Bansal (Chief Financial Officer) (w.e.f February 08, 2021)

(ii) Relative of Key manaperial personnel Anil Pitei (Father of Mr. Prashant Pitti, Mr. Nishant Pitti and Mr. Rikant Pittie)

(This space has beek intextionofly left blank)
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Related Party Disclosures {Contd...)

) Détails of veleted party trangsctions are as befow:

Particulacs

For the year ended WMarch 31, 2021

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Subsidiary

Enterprises owned or
significantly infinenced
by key managerinl
personnel or their
relntives

Relative of
KMP

KmP

Subsidiary

Enterprises cwied or
significently influencad
by key managerial
personnel or their
relatives

Relative ef
KM

KMP

(A Salary paid daring the y err

Nishant Pi

40.50

39.51

Prashant Pitt

.60

9.60

Rikant Pitlie

30,00

28.61

Abani Kant Jha

0.70

343

Preeti Sharma

042

072

Ashish Kumar Bansal

0.76

(B} Director sitting fees paid during the year

Maxy Francis Assis F' d

0.40

Satvu Prakash

0.52

0.20

Usha Mehra

0.51

040

Vined Kumar Tripathi

0.51

0.10

(C) Rent income earned

Near Group Services Pyt Ltd

1.15

(D) Rent expenses paid

Mr. Nishant Pitti

0.3¢

0.90

|E| Purchase of Services

Easemvtri: Middle East DMCC

183.88

8.54

Sinipore Arrival Pre Lid

19.35

1.18

Thai Arrivalsé

390

Stoby Private Limited

0.20

LE) Sale of poods | servides

Singapare Arrival Fre Lid

0.23

G} Service Fee

Mishant Pitti

142

Rikant Pitlie

42

{H) Loans given

Eas. Productions Pvt Ltd ~

335,30

Easemy i UK Lid &%

212

(1} Repay ment

Eas; Productions Pvt Ltd ~

13%.55

10} Interest Amonnt

Bas: Preductions Pvt Ltd

15.02

Easem:irip UK Ltd ##

0.12

(K) Sale of in Property

Anil Pitti

77.50

(L) Reimbursement expenses incurved on behalf of
an

Nishant Pifri

165.33

Rikant Pinie

164.74

Anfl Pitt

1.35

Easemyirip Middleeast DMCC

319

Sinpapore Amivals Ple Ltd

1.20

(M| Tnvestment in subsidiary

Eagemirip UK Lid,

3.94

320

(N! Income from financinl gunrantee**

Easemsirip UK Lid,

173
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(b)

Related Party Disclosures (Contd...)

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Enterprises owned Emerz: =8
or significantly si::;?'[ca:lrly
Particul i e . .
rhear Subsidiary '“"":I:’:l:e;:’;:‘ ¥ | Retative ol KMP | KMP Subsidiary | influenced by | Relativeof KMP|  KMP
personnel or their k:yer;noa:lﬁe::[
fElstves their refatives
[A) Balance receivable at the year end
Mishant Pitti - - - - - - - 40.08
Rikant Pittie - - - - - 38.02
| Anil Pitti - - - - - - 1,35 -
[Mear Group Services Pvt Lid - - - - - 0.2] - -
Easemytrip Middle East DMCC 4,89 - - - 4.02 - - -
(E) Balance Payable at the vear end
Nishant Pitti - - - 15.11 - - - 1.42
Rikant Pittie - - - 19,93 - - - -
Prashant Piiti - - - 0.27 - - - 0.54
Singapore Arrival Pte Lid 0.24 - - - 0.76 = - =
Snoby Private Limited*** - - - - - ¢.00 - -
(C) Advance Salary Given
Rikant Piitie 5 - - . - - - 015
{D} Investment in Subsidiary outsinnding at year
end
Fasemytrip Middl DMCC 1,15 - - - 1.15 - - -
Fasemytop LK Lud ** 7.34 - - - 3.20 - - -
Singapore Arrivals Pte Lid 1.66 - - - 7.66 - - -
(E) Loans piven
Faseryirip UK Lid, 2.12 - - - - . - -
(F) Interest receivable on loan
| Baserm trip Ui Lid. 0.12 - - - - - - -
~Easy Production Pvt Ltd ceases to be related party after September 12, 2019, Bal receivable from Easy Production Pvt Lid as at September 12, 2019 to INR 263.13.
#Thai Arrivals ceases to be related party with effect from May 01, 2019, Balance payable lo Thai Arrivals as at April 30, 2019 amounts to INR 43.85.
** 1t includes INR 7.14 (March 31, 2020: INR 3.20) ds d i an of fair value of premium pertaining to financial guarantee of INR 175.25 on bebalf of Easemytrip UK Limited

for working eapital demand loan and overdraft facility 1eken from ICICI Bank UK PLC.
*4% Absolute balance as at March 31, 2020 of Snoby Private Limited is INR 4,963,

## The 8% loan given to EasemyTrip UK Itd is d and repaysable on d i

~* For details , Refer Note & (d)

Key management personnel compensation

For the year Faor the year endad

Particulars ended March 31, March 31, 2020

Short term employce benefits 3228 83.87

Sittiny: fees 154 1.20

Total compensation 83.82 85.07

The amounts disclosed in the table are the r ised as an exp during the reporting ycar related te key management personnel.

The remuneration to the key management personnel does not include the provision made for gratuity & leave benefit, as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sale and purchase from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevailing arm's length tr jon. O ling bal al the year end are unsecwred and interest free (other
than loans) and settlement ocears in cash. For the year ende:l March 31, 2021 lhe C‘ompany has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31,
2020 :Nil). This is undertaken each fi | year tt { g the fi I position of the related party and the market in which the related pariy operates. There have been no
guaraniees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables except financizt guarantee of INR 17527 Mn (March 31, 2020: INR 7(0) given on behalf of Easemytrip UK Limited
for working capital demand loan and overdrafi fagikity taken from ICTCL Bank UK PLC. There were no commitments given ta related parties.
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29

30

Interim Dividend
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on April 19, 2021 declared an interim dividend of INR 2 per equity share for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, Since
dividend amounting to INR 217.29 {March 31, 2020; Nit) is declared subsequent to Mach 31, 2021, it is not recognised at the end of reporting vear,

Segment Information
Business segments

For management purposes the Company is organized into Lines of Business (LOBs) based on its products and services and has following reportable semments based on the
nature of the products the risks and returns the organisation structure and the internal financial reporting systems, The segment tesults are regularly reviewed and perfornance
is assessed by its Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) i.e. whole-time director. LOB wise profits before taxes finance costs other income depreciation and amortisation
are reviswed by CODM on manthly basis. The whele time director(s) monitor the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
tesource allocation and perfonnance assessment.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the Company’s reportable segments:

Air Ticketing: Through an intemet and mobile based platform and callcentres the Company provides the facility to book and service international and domestic air tickets to
ultimate consumer through B2C (Business To Consumer) and B2B2C (Business to Business to Consumer) channel. Both these channels share similar characteristics as they are
engaged in facilitation of air tickets. Management believes that it is appropriate to aggrepate these twe channels as one reporting segment due to similarities in the nature of
business,

Hotels Packages: The Company provides holiday packages and hotel reservations through call-centers and branch offices, The hotel reservations form integral part of the
holiday packages and accordingly management believes that it is appropriate to aggregate these services as one reportable segment due to similarities in the nature of services.

Other operations primarily include the advertisement income from hosting advertisement on its intemet web-sites income from szle of rail and bus tickets and mcome from
facilitating website agcess to a travel insurance companies. The operations do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds to be a reportable segment for any of the years
presented in these fnancial statements.

Adjustments:
1. Finance cost ather income and depreciation and amortization are rot allocated to individual segments as they are managed at Company level.
2, Current tax and deferred tax assets and liabilities are not allocated to individual segments as they are managed at Company level,

(This space has heen intentionally left blank)
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Entity wide disclosures

Revenue of INR 158.74 is derived from one external customer arising from Air Passage segment for the year ended March 31, 2021 March 31, 2026 INR 409,78 from two

extemal customers) individually accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue.

The summary of the segmental information for the year ended and as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Particulars Air Passage Hotel Packages Other services Taotal Operations
Sale of Services 967.51 449 889 980.49
Other operating revenue

-Advertisement revenue 34.86 0.39 (.78 36.03
Total Revenoe 1,052.37 4.88 2.47 1,066.92
Segment results
Add: Other income 317.93 - - 317.93
Less: Operating expenses 6l6.11 2.85 5.60 624,62
Operating profit 75419 2.03 4.01 760.23
Less: Finance cost - - - 31.71
Less: Depreciation and Amortization - - 6,62
Add: Other income - - . 124.52
Profit before tax 754.19 2403 4.01 844,22
Segment agsets
Allocable assets 1.214.74 18.91 10,94 1,244.59
Unallocable assets - - - 2,564.80
Total assets 1,214,74 18.91 10.94 3.809,3%
Segment liabilities
Allocable liabilities 1,929.14 36.48 1.16 1,966.78
Unallocable liabilities - - - 188.79
Total liabilities 1.929.14 36.48 116 2,155.57
Other Disclosures
Capital Expenditure
Property Plant and Equipment 3.85 - - 3.85
Intangible assets 4.87 - - 0.87
The summary of the segmental information for the year ended March 31, 2020 is as follows:
Particulaes Hotel Packages Other services Total Operations
Sale of Services 1,133.67 10170 1.51 1,242.88
Other operating revenue

-Advertisement revenue 152.30 13.66 1.01 166.97
Tatal Revenae 1,285.97 11536 8.52 1,409.85
Segment resufts
Add: Other income 20686 - - 206,86
Less: Operating expenses 1,171.21 105.07 1.76 1,284.04
Operating Profit 321.62 10.29 0.76 332.67
Less: Finance cost - - - 30,98
Less: Depreciation and Amortization - - 7.07
Add: Other income - - - 180.53
Profit/ (loss) before tax 321.62 10,29 0.76 475,15
The summary of the segmental information as at March 31, 2020 is as fotlows:
Segment assets
Allocable assets 941,91 3592 8.54 986.37
Unallocable assets - - - 1,837.00
Total assets 941.91 35.92 8.54 2,823.37
Segment liabilities
Allocable liabilities 162843 2925 0.59 1,658.27
Unallocakble liabilities - - - 137.94
Total liabilities 1.628.43 29.25 0.59 1.796.21
Other Disclosures
Capital Expenditure
Property Plant and Equipment 10.13 - - 10,13
Intangible assets 141 - - 141
Right to use asset 6.64 - - 6.64
Intangibles under development 333 - - 3.33
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31 Capital Managemeni

For the purpose of Company's capital capital includes issued equity capital, securities premiuwm and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders,
The primary objective of the Company's capital isto imis¢ the shareholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company
may adjust return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The
Company includes within net debt, meerest bearing borrowings, trade and other payabies, less cash and cash equivalents.,

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Trade Payables [refer note 12(n)] 238.02 248.46
Other financial liabilines [refer note 12(h)] 1,078.88 705.08
Less: cash and cash equivalents [refer note 9] 424,48} (130.78)
Net debts 892,42 82276
Equity share capital (Note 10) 217.29 217.29
Other equity £,436.53 809.87
Total capital 1,653.82 1,027.16
Capital and net debt 2,546,25 1,849.92

Gearing ratio (%) 35.05% 44.43%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2021 and year ended March 31. 2020.

(This space has been intentionally feft blavk)
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32 Fair value measurements

Set out below, is a comparisen by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, including those with ¢arrying amounts that

are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair value
As at As at
Parti
Rrtirslars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss account (FVTPL)
Investments 10.15 G.99 1015 999
Financial assets at amortised cost
Loans 45,46 13239 45,46 13239
Trade receivables 293.91 583.68 203.91 583.68
Cash and cash equivalents 424.48 130.78 424.48 130.78
Other bank balances 1,858.32 1,177.95 1,858.52 1,177.95
Other financial assets 206 99 353.43 20999 353.43
Total 2,842.31 2,388.22 2,842.31 2,388.22
Financial labilities
Trade payables 23801 248 46 238.01 248.46
Other financial liabilities 1,078.88 720.00 1,078.88 720.00
Total 1,316.89 968,46 1,316.89 968.46

Management has assessed that loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade payables approximale their carrying amounts largely
due to the short-term maturities of thess instruments. The fair values of the mutual funds are based on price quatations at the Teporting date.

Discount rate used in determining fair value

The inferest rate used to discount estinated future cash flows, where applicable, are based on the incremental borrowing rate of borrower which in case of financial
liabilities is average market cost of borrowings of the Company and in case of financial asset is the average market rate of similar credit rated instrument, The
Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing

parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale,

The following metheds and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
The fair values of the Company's advances are determined by using discount rate that reflects the incremental borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting year.

{This spuce has been intentionally lefi blank)
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33 Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest Jevel input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole,

Level 1: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted (unadjusted) prices in active mmarkets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are ohservable for such items, directly or

indirectly,

Level 3: This level of hierarchy includes items measured using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market

transactions in the same instruments nor based on available market data.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments is discounted cash flow analysis.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hicrarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities:

Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2021;

Fair value measurement using

Particulars Totat Quoted prices in active Slgmﬁca.mt observable S:gmﬁcal:t
markets inpuis unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments at fair value through profit or loss
- Mutual funds 10.15 10.15
10.15 10.15 - =
There are no transfer between levels during the year ended March 31, 2021,
Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2020:
Fair value measorement using
Particulars Total Quoted prices in active S:gmﬁca?nt observable Sigificant
markets inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3]

Financinl assets measured at fair value
Investments at fair value through profic or loss
- Mutual funds

9.99

999

9.99

There are no transfer between levels during the year ended March 31, 2020,
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(a)

(i)

(E)

(i)

(b}

Financisl Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company's activities are exposed to varicty of financial risk; credit risk, liguidity risk and foreign currency risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management
of these risks. The Company’s senior management ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are govemed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Company reviews and agrees on policies for managing each of these risks
which are summarized below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial mstrument or customer contract, leading to a financial foss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables), including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are typically unsecured. Credit risk is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the

creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows:

Pariiculars Not Due 0 to 60 days G60to120dayvs 120 ie 180 days  More than 180 days Total
As at March 31, 2021 171.08 108.04 22.50 10.65 55.17 367.44
As at March 31, 2020 414.96 72.40 B4.72 50.72 26.41 54921

*The ageing of trade receivables does not include expected credit loss.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables using simplified approach

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Gross camying amoumt 367.44 649.21
Expected credit losses {Loss allowance prevision) (73.53) (65.53)
Carrying amount of trade receivables (net of impairment) 293.91 583.68

Financial Guarantees

The Company is exposed to credit risk in relation to financial guarantee given to bank. The Company*s maximum expasure in this respect i the maximum amount the Company
could have to pay if the guarantee is called on. Financial guarantees are accounted as explained in note 2.10. The maximum amount Company could be forced to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee is INR 175.27 Mn, Based cn expectations at the end of the reporting year,
the Company considers fhat it is more likely than not that such an amouat will not be payable under the arrangement,

Ligquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and ccliateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company’s

objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely manitors its liquidity position and deploys a
robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing including 1oans from banks at an optimised cost.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s finanelal liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

As at March 31, 2021 Carrying amount Cn Demand Upto 1 year Mare than 1 vear Total

Other financial liabilities 1,078.88 1,078.88 - - 1,078 88
Financial guarantee contracts* 175.27 175.27 - - 175.27
Trade pavables 238.02 - 238.02 - 238,02
Total 1.492.17 1,254,158 238.02 - 1.492.17
As at March 31, 2020 Carrying amount On Demand Upte 1 vear More than 1 year Total

Other financial liabilities 720,00 173 - - 717.31
Financial guarantee contracts* - 70.00 70.00 - - 70.00
Trade pavables 248.46 - 248.46 - 248.46
Total 1,038.46 787.31 248.46 - 1,035.77

* Based on the maximum amount that can be called for under the financial guarantee contract.
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
interest tate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include trade payables in foreign

currency.
Foreign currency risk:

The fluctation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the statement of profit or loss, where any transaction references more than one currency or where
asse(s/liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies and thus
it is exposed to exchange rate fluctuations, The Company has a treasury team which evaluates the fimpact of foreign exchange rate Nuctuations by assessing its exposute ta exchange

rate risks and advises the management of any material adverse effect on the Company.

Particular of unhedged foreign exposure payables as at the reporting date :

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Foreign Rupee equivalent Foreign Rupee equivalent
Currency currency Amoeunt  (INR million) eurrency Amount (INR million)
(in million) {in_million)
UsD .09 6.93 0.09 6.58
EUR 0.00 0.24 0.00 024
THB 0.09 0.22 0.09 022
SGD 0.00 0.24 0.01 0.76

Foreign currency sensitivity on unhedged exposure
5% increase / decrease in foreign exchange rates will have the following impact on profit before tax:

Impact on profit before tax

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Encrease by 5% in forex rate 0.38 0.39
Decrease by 5% in forex rate (0.38) {0.39)

(This space has heen intentionally ieft blank)
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35 Disclosure required under section 186(4) of the companies Act 2013

In¢luded in loans and advance are certain intercorporate deposits the particulars of which are disclosed below as required by Sec 186{4) of the Companies Act 2013:

" Secured / For the year ended For the year ended
Name of party Rate of interest Due date S Purpaose of Loan March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Easemytrip UK Limited 8% On Demand Unsecured Working Capital 212 -
Easy Production Private Limited 16% On Demand Unsecured Movie production - 335.50
Total 2,12 335.50
Muovement in loans are as follows:
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balance 114,51 35135
Add: Loans miven durmng the year 212 33550
Less: Received back during the year 114.51 59234
Net amount appeacing in Loans (Nate 6) 2,12 114.51
Far the year ended Faor the year ended
)| 1 s
rvestmen March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Easemytrip Middleeast DMCC: 60 shares (March 31, 2020: 60 shares) - 115
Singapore Arrivals Pic Limited: 150,000 shares (March 31, 2020: 150,000 shares} - 166
Easemytrip UK Limited: 100 shares (March 31, 2020: 100 shares) 3.94 3.20
3.94 1201
his space hax been infentionally left blank
: )
S ) 4
N o o




Easy Trip Planners Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{(Amouni io INR million, unless otherwise stated)

36 Sections 92-92F of Income Tax Act, 1961 prescribe Transfer Pricing regulations for cotaputing the taxable income and expenditure from ‘international transactions'
between ‘associated enterprises’ on an 'arm's length' basis. These regulations, inter alia, aiso require the meintenance of prescribed documents and information including
furnishing a report from an Accorntant within the due date of filing the return of income, The Company has undertaken necessary steps to comply with the Transfer
Pricing regulations. The Management is of the opinion that the international transactions are at arm’s length, and hence the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact
on the firancial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

37 The Code on Social Security, 2020 {‘Cade") relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in September
2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules /
Interpretation have not yet heen issued. The company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code
becomes effective.

38 COVID-19 Pandemic
The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19} pandemic including second wave has resulted in econninic slowdown. Yarious restrictions on travel have been unposed across
the globe which have led to huge amount of cancellations and limited new air travel, hotel packages, bus and train bookings. The Company has undertaken certain cost
reduction initiatives, including implementing salary reductions and work from home policies, deferring non-critical capital expenditures and renegotiating the supplier
payments and contracts. The Company expects to continue to adapt these policies and cost reduction injtiatives as the situation evolves.
In preparation of these standalone financial Statements, the Company has considered the possible effects that may result from COVID-1% on the carrying amount of its
assets. In develaping the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global conditions because of COVID-19, the Company, as on date on approval of
these standalone financial statements has taken into account both the current situation and the likely future developments and has considered internal and external sources
of information to arrive at its assessment. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions nsed and based on current estimates expects the carrying
amount of these assets will be recoversd. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's standalone financial statements may differ from that estimated a3 at the date of
approval of these standalone financial statements.
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